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December 5, 2016 

ADDENDUM 1 
 

To:    All Prospective Offerors 

From:    Scott Bachtell, Supervisor of Purchasing 

Reference:   RFP #2017-18 Group Dental and Vision Insurance 

 

This addendum is being issued to provide clarifications and answers to certain questions referencing the original proposal 

package and any resultant contracts for the above bid. 

 

NOTE OF CLARIFICATION 

 

On the Excel file 2016.10.24_WCPS.UCCI Experience, Column AN, Rows 56-60 have been corrected to show the 

administration fee of 3.00 as opposed to 2.99. 

 

GENERAL QUESTIONS 

 

1. Question:  Page 15, item 4b, Please confirm the Executive Summary is actually the financially summary that you are 

describing in the description or if it two separate documents, please confirm where you would like the financial 

summary placed within the price proposal. 

Answer:   Yes, the Executive Summary is the Financial Summary.   

2. Question:  Please confirm that we can return the bid/proposal affidavit and contract affidavit back to you via pdf (the 

format they were provided in). 

Answer:  Yes, please submit each electronic file in the same format that it was released in. 

3. Question:  Page 22 item 13, bid requirement. Please confirm where in the technical proposal we are supposed to 

include this section 

Answer:  The information on page 23 is to be included with the Technical information in Number 3, 

“Response to Technical Proposal Questionnaire and Technical Bid Forms” letter d, on page 14. 

4. Question:  Can we request the Reference Proposal Form you are referencing and where are we supposed to include it 

within the technical proposal?  

Answer:  The Reference Proposal Form is now available on the WCPS Purchasing website as a fillable 

PDF. 

5. Question:  Is there a dollar amount you are requesting for an implementation credit? 

Answer:  No, we are open to your proposals. 

6. Question:  The RFP mentions PDF copies are not acceptable.  Is the request to return the electronic proposal in word 

format? 

Answer:  Yes, please submit each electronic file in the same format that it was released in. 

7. Question:  Do you have a Word document of the original RFP available? 

Answer:  The RFP is only available in PDF format.  We have however released pages 23-33 with corrected 

numbering in Word format on the WCPS Purchasing website. 

8. Question:  We’re currently doing work on the censuses to get some Geo data going. Here is our concern: 

 GeoAccess is asking for eligible and covered employee access standards 

 Census provides active eligible and covered with retired eligible and covered 

 How we should group the census? The current one shows enrollment by rating tier for both actives and 

retirees. 

Answer:  When completing Technical Proposal Forms T5A and T5B please include Retirees and 

Employees in your total counts of eligible and covered employees 

9. Question:  What plan design changes, if any, have occurred during the last 3 years? 

Answer:  No plan design changes have been made to the dental or vision programs.  
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10. Question:  Why are you out to bid? 

Answer:  Board policy requires us to bid all services every three to five years. 

11. Question:  Please confirm that there is a requirement for all bidders to fully and clearly disclose any and all potential 

fees and charges directly in their proposals, including but not limited to the following: 

 Network Access Fees 

 Cost Containment 

 Network Maintenance 

 Care Management 

 Claims Reprocessing 

 COB/Subrogation Savings 

Answer:  The RFP requires bidders to fully disclose all fees that will be charged and any savings that will 

be retained.  This is noted on Price Proposal Forms P2A and P2B. Technical Questionnaire item 76 

requires bidders to disclose any portion of network savings they will retain and Price Questionnaire item 

13 requires bidders to disclose any fees other than the PEPM ASO fee. 

12. Question:  Technical Form T1 – the numbering of the questions on page 31 is off.  Can we correct the numbering or 

should we keep it as is? 

Answer:  Pages 23-33 are now available with corrected numbering in Word format on the WCPS 

Purchasing website. 

13. Question:  The RFP states “a technical proposal that includes any pricing information will be disqualified”. Are the 

following types of information considered pricing information? 

 

 The time period that rates are guaranteed for - Technical 

 Performance guarantees with amounts placed at risk – Section V #3 asks that you confirm you 

will agree to the percentages requested.  If you plan to offer guarantees above that, note that 

in the Technical proposal, but outline those specific amounts in the Price Proposal. 

 The cost impact, stated as a percentage, of a deviation from the client’s current plan design, as 

requested in form T2 - Technical 

 Whether or not a specific service, such as printed provider directories, is included in the proposed 

rates or available at an additional cost – Can note there are additional costs in Technical, and 

outline those costs in Price Proposal. 

 Information on dentists fees/reimbursements - Price 

14. Question:  Should bidding carriers include their proposed performance guarantees (discussion of the performance 

guarantees on pages 19-21 in the RFP) in the Technical or Price proposal? 

Answer:  Page 19, Section V, #3 asks that you confirm you will agree to the percentages requested.  If you 

plan to offer guarantees above that, note that in the Technical proposal, but outline those specific amounts 

in the Price Proposal. 

15. Question:  Is it permissible for the carrier to submit supplemental, carrier-generated information such as sample 

communication materials in PDF format? 

Answer:  Yes, these materials should be labeled beginning with Attachment F. 

16. Question:  Can you please confirm the price questionnaire goes in the price proposal? 

Answer:  Yes. 

17. Question:  Should the bid requirements chart on page 23 of the RFP be included in the Price or Technical proposal? 

Answer:  The information on page 23 is to be included with the Technical information in Number 3, 

“Response to Technical Proposal Questionnaire and Technical Bid Forms” letter d, on page 14. 
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18. Question:  Item 1 on the bid requirements chart on page 23 of the RFP requests prospective carriers to confirm they 

have “completed the required Reference Proposal Form”. Can you please provide a copy of the Reference Proposal 

Form? 

Answer:  The Reference Proposal Form is now available on the WCPS Purchasing website as a fillable 

PDF. 

19. Question:  Can you please confirm there is no M/WBE requirement where a set amount of the contract must be paid 

to M/WBE vendors? 

Answer:  There are no M/WBE requirements for this RFP. 

20. Question:  The RFP states that “Bidders shall be required under Article 56, Section 270(4), annotated Code of 

Maryland, to provide proof of Certificate of Registry and must be licensed to do business in the State of Maryland and 

must provide a tax certification number.” Is a screenshot evidencing status with the Maryland Department of 

Assessments and Taxation sufficient, or must an actual Certificate of Registry/Status be procured and included in the 

proposal? 

Answer:  A “screenshot” evidencing the vendor’s status is acceptable. 

21. Question:  Questions 55, 56, 83 and 84 ask the following: Provide references of three (3) current major provider 

practices in Washington County that have participated in your network for more than five (5) years and Provide 

references of three (3) former major provider practices in Washington County who have terminated their contract 

within the past two (2) years.  Please confirm that the request for references is for provider practices. 

Answer:  Confirmed. 

22. Question:  Within Technical Volume I, g. Attachments the instructions state “Any item or data requested or provided 

should be included as attachments labeled beginning with Attachment F.” please verify what document is considered 

Attachment F. 

Answer:  These would include supplemental documents such as marketing materials, sample reports, ID 

card examples. 

23. Question:  In regard to the following: All pages of both proposal volumes must be consecutively numbered from 

beginning (Page 1) to end (Page “x”.) Should each of the sections restart with page 1 or should “a. Signature 

Addenda Acknowledgment” start with page 1 and flow straight through to section “h” in one large book format with 

no tabs to separate the sections? If that is the intent, is it acceptable to create a cover page for our attachments 

showing the starting page number; since our sample attachments are in protected formats that will not allow us to 

change page numbering? 

Answer:  The Proposals should be numbered from page 1 to end (page “x”).  You may put a tab at each 

section, but the numbering should continue.  The Table of Contents and the Attachments do not need to be 

page numbered.  

24. Question:  Can you please tell me where to find the T1 Questionnaire? 

Answer:  The T1 questionnaire is Section VI of the RFP document found on pages 24 -32.   

25. Question:  Are you open to Performance Guarantees being based on a (agreed) fixed dollar amount instead of % of 

fees? 

Answer:  Section V #3 asks that you confirm you will agree to the percentages requested.  If you plan to 

offer guarantees above that, note that in the Technical proposal, but outline those specific amounts in the 

Price Proposal. 

26. Question:  Page 23 of the RFP indicates that AM Best ratings must be A or better.  We understand that the schools 

current vision carrier is rated A-.  Our plans are underwritten by an A- carrier.  Please advise if a rating of A- is 

acceptable? 

Answer:  Yes. 

27. Question:  Please advise if we need to match your current plan exactly and if we cannot will we still be considered? 

Answer:  Our request is for an exact plan match.  However, deviations will be reviewed and considered 

based on type and significance of deviation. 

28. Question:  Pg. 7 #12 - Confirm we are to respond as the Bidder 

Answer:  Confirmed. 
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29. Question:  Please provide a breakdown census of retirees. 

Answer:  A retiree census is provided in the documents available on the Bolton Partners website. 

30. Question:  For electronic file 834 what is the standard format and frequency? 

Answer:  We would anticipate a weekly file in a format to be determined. 

31. Question:  Will enrollment be a New Enrollment Process or Roll-Over?  What is the expectation for enrollment 

meetings, i.e. # of meetings, anticipated start, how many locations, etc. 

Answer:  Enrollment would be a roll-over.  The number of enrollment meetings varies each year dependent 

on the number of plan changes.  If a carrier change is made, we would anticipate approximately five 

meetings at various County locations.   

32. Question:  What types of communications are currently going out to members by current vendor? 

Answer:  This will not be addressed in this addendum. 

33. Question:  Do current vendors currently have a dedicated toll-free phone # for Customer Service? 

Answer:  Yes. 

34. Question:  Do current vendors supply EOB’s to members for all services? 

Answer:  Dental - yes.  Vision – no. 

35. Question:  Does the non-disclosure agreement have to be signed by the same person who is signing off on the bid? 

Answer:  No, please refer to Number 7. “Preparation of Bid”, letter e and f on page 4.  This outlines 

Bid/Proposal signatures. 

36. Question:  On page 20 of Section V under Performance Guarantee under b. Maintenance 3rd bullet REPORT 

NETWORK CHANGES TO ACCOUNT ON QUARTERLY BASIS.  

Please provide specific details regarding the network change.  Is this area or state specific? 

Answer:  Area specific, taking into consideration our close proximity to WV, PA and VA too. 

37. Question:  Should we refer to the Confidential Appendix for any responses within the RFP and only list a confidential 

response in the confidential section? 

Answer:  Yes, but please reference the appropriate section and question number in the Confidential 

Appendix. 

38. Question:  Can we provide a Supplemental Information section in the Price proposal to include any additional 

documents (Vendor Financial docs/assumptions, Guarantee docs, etc)? 

Answer:  Yes. 

39. Question:  Can we provide the Geo Access Reports and Directories exclusively on CD to cut down on the pages in 

the binders as these items tend to be very large? 

Answer:  Please upload Geo Access Reports and Directories to the Bolton Partners website as well as the 

accompanying flash drive when submitting your proposal.  In your proposal, please note that you have 

done so. 

40. Question:  Is it possible to receive a 1 week extension to this RFP upon receipt of a completed census as we are 

unable to proceed with pricing or the geo access reports due to the missing census information? 

Answer:  No extension will be provided at this time. 

41. Question:  We have claims through September, but the admin fees are spiked out. Are they included in the “paid 

claims” column? 

Answer:  No. 

42. Question:  Both the active and retiree census are missing zip codes, gender, and date of birth on the enrolled tabs. We 

will not be able to quote without this information. 

Answer:  We expect vendors can match the eligible vs. enrolled by the employee number, all of which is 

provided.   
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DENTAL QUESTIONS 

43. Question:  Please provide the current ASO fee for the Dental plan as well as the COBRA/Fully Insured equivalent 

rates for both the Voluntary & contributory plans?  Are Renewal rates/fees available? 

Answer:  The current ASO fee for the Dental plan is $3.00 per employee.  The fully insured equivalent rate 

on a monthly basis would be: 

Employee Only            $22.33 

Employee + Spouse         $44.65 

Employee + Child(ren)    $48.00 

        Family                                 $94.34 

 

Renewal rates/fees are not available.  

44. Question:  For the ASO Dental, is the current Dental plan integral to medical (same enrollment, one bill, one policy, 

etc.)?  If so, is the current Medical plan grandfathered? 

Answer:  No, the dental plan is separate from the medical plan. 

45. Question:  Please confirm the out of network reimbursement on the dental plan.  It appears to be a MAC plan, but can 

you please confirm? 

Answer:  Reimbursement is based on UCCI’s schedule of Maximum Allowable Charge (MAC).  Network 

dentists agree to accept MAC allowance as payment in full. Non-network dentists may bill member for 

difference between UCCI allowance and their fee. 

46. Question:  Please provide a census with date of births and zip codes and identifies enrollees. The provided census 

gives DOB and zip codes for all eligible, but we need to be able to single this information out for enrollees.  Please 

also request that they include status/ # of hours worked for each since contribution is different each category (Full-

time employees pay 15% of Dental costs/Employees working 20-29 hours per week pay 50% of Dental 

costs/Employees working 15-19 hours per week pay 100% for any benefit/Retirees pay 100% of the monthly rates for 

dental) 

Answer:  We expect vendors can match the data for eligible vs. enrolled by the employee number included 

on both.  We will not be providing information on number of hours worked.   

47. Question:  Please request the same for the retiree census, except status/ # of hours worked. 

Answer:  We expect vendors can match the data for eligible vs. enrolled by the employee number included 

on both.   

48. Question:  Please request a complete benefit book for Dental.  The Summary plan description attached only gives 

limited information and may not be sufficient for the benefit deviation request. 

Answer:  No further information is available at this time. 

49. Question:  Please confirm current and renewal admin fee and actual number of claims processed per month if 

available. 

Answer:  Dental fee information can be found in question #43.  Number of claims processed per month is 

not available.  

50. Question:  Please provide the top provider report for the Disruption Analysis.  Please include on the spreadsheet: 

Provider ID, Provider Name, Provider Address, Provider Zip Code and Current Network Status. 

Answer:  This information is found in the Technical Bid Forms T6A and T6B. 

51. Question:  In regard to Price Bid Forms, Tab P3A- Top Dental CDT Codes, please confirm the zip code for which we 

should obtain the information. Or confirm if book of business should be utilized. 

Answer:  21740 

52. Question:  In regard to Price Bid Forms, Tab P3A- Top Dental CDT Codes, please confirm what R&C should be 

utilized 80th percentile, 90th percentile etc.. 

Answer:  Use 80th percentile if basing on R&C. 
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VISION QUESTIONS 

 

53. Question:  We note that the current plan is fully insured and that the RFP is requesting both a quote for FI and ASO, 

can you advise why the additional consideration of ASO? 

Answer:  WCPS’s medical and dental plans are both self-insured, and we feel a self-insured route for the 

vision plan should be considered. 

54. Question:  Please provide the current Vision paid premium. 

Answer: Per month: 

Employee Only     $4.85 

Employee + Spouse     $8.81 

Employee + Child(ren) $9.24 

Family         $14.25 

 

Renewal rates/fees are not available.  

55. Question:  Looks like we have vision claims data for the 10/15 through 9/16 time period --- May we have the same 

data for the 10/14 through 9/15 time period? 

Answer:  Yes, the vision data has now been uploaded onto the secure Bolton website.  Michelle Schultz 

from the WCPS Purchasing Department will email a complete file to all parties who initially received this 

information. 

56. Question:  RFP page 19 states that vision coverage is fully insured- can you provide rate history for the last 3 years, 

and renewal rates? 

Answer:  Please see question #55 for the current rates and answer on renewal rates.  These rates have been 

in place since 7/1/13.   

57. Question:  Is the vision coming out of rate guarantee? 

Answer:  Yes, the rate guarantee period will end 6/30/16. 

58. Question:  How satisfied/dissatisfied are you with your current vision plan? 

Answer:  We are satisfied with the current plan. 

59. Question:  May we offer an alternate plan to include a diabetic program in addition to the current insured benefit? 

Answer:  Yes. 
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